DATE:
TIME:

April 29, 2021
12:00PM

PLACE: Zoom Meeting
PURPOSE: April Meeting

10.

11

ORDER OF BUSINESS

. Call to Order

Public Comment-Due to COVID-19, all public comment must be submitted in writing prior to the
meeting

. Approval of Minutes

A. Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2021 (Pages 2-4)
Communications

Treasurer’'s Report
A. March 2021 CAT Financial Report (Pages 5-10)

Old Business

New Business :
A. Servicing of military bases

Future Procurements

Resolutions
A. RESOLUTION NO. 2112 — RENEWAL OF TRIPARTITE AGREEMENT WITH

SHIPPENSBURG UNIVERSITY, SHIPPENSBURG UNIVERSITY STUDENT SERVICES,
INC. AND CAT (Page 11)
B. RESOLUTION NO. 2113 — APPROVING THE REVISING OF THE AUTHORITY

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK (Pages 12)

RESOLUTION NO. 2114 — HONORING MAINTENANCE MANAGER MARK MITCHELL

FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE AUTHORITY (PAGES 13)

RESOLUTION NO. 2115 — AUTHORIZING ADVANCING THE SERVICE PLAN TO THE

PUBLIC COMMENT PHASE (PAGES 14-15)

E. RESOLUTION NO. 2116 — AMENDING EMPLOYEE SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY
(PAGES 16-40)

o o

Staff Report
A. Update on Board meeting format polling

Adjournment

Next Meeting: Thursday, May 27, 2021



Received from David Clouser 4/28/2021

For public comment at CAT Board meeting 4/29/2021

Proposal for CAT Service

The present service of CAT fixed routes is causing issues in the
Middletown area. As a former Middletown Borough Manager, | would
like to offer some ideas to address these issues. The present buses
starting at 5 am are traveling empty or perhaps with 1 passenger. The
second issue is the heavy weight of the buses, which has caused pot
holes on the Borough streets. The third issue is the noise and pollution
which the buses cause to otherwise quiet neighborhoods.

The concept which | am advancing is a hybrid system which would
benefit CAT in bringing in more business and higher ridership than the
current system. | call it the Hybrid Bus/Van GPS system. For example,
the current large buses would only travel on PennDot roads mainly Rt
230. The vans would respond to a centralized GPS, with vans (6
passengers) as riders phone giving their preferred time and place to be
picked up. Once picked up, another passenger enroute could be picked
up as well. That would leave a second van available for the next pickup.

Possible locations for the vans for the Middletown area include: Giant
shopping center; the new train station area; Penn State Campus;
Airport area (HIA). CAT could add more locations as needed. This would
enable riders to be picked up near their homes or businesses and
transported to their desired locations.

The fees would be based on distance and frequency. CAT would save on
bus upkeep of the large buses, space for parking, training of drivers,



more riders going to non serviced areas, and increased flexibility for
CAT and the riders. Large buses would continue on RT 230.

The details could be worked out and the community and CAT would
benefit with Hybrid Bus/Van GPS system.

David L. Clouser
402 Conewago St. Middletown
717-944-5064

diclouser@hotmail.com

April 28th, 2021



CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY
901 N. Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101

MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING
March 25, 2021

The regular meeting of the Authority’s Board of Directors convened on this date at
12:00pm, of Capital Area Transit held by Zoom, Chairman Eric Bugaile presiding.
Present were board members: LaToya Bellamy, Al Bienstock, Bruce Weber, Scott
Wyland, Richard Kotz and Chad Saylor. Jill Nagy, Counsel, was also present.

Administrative Staff Members present were Richard Farr, Angela Bednar, Christopher
Zdanis, Jenna Reedy, Brian Gillette, Brianna Holmes, Chris Becker, DeRon Jordan,
Jamie Leonard, Stephen Baldwin, Abby Davis and Mark Mitchell.

ATTENDANCE

All members of the Board of Directors were present.

PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment received.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Ms. LaToya Bellamy moved to accept the February 25, 2021 meeting minutes,
seconded by Mr. Al Bienstock. Motion approved.

COMMUNICATIONS

The Wall Street Journal article “COVID-19 VACCINE ACCESS: HOW RURAL TRANSIT
AGENCIES ARE HELPING GET THE SHOTS IN ARMS” was presented-to the Board
by Mr. Richard Farr. Mr. Richard Farr noted that currently 663 vaccination trips have
been completed and 289 are scheduled and still to be completed.

TREASURER'S REPORT

Mr. Al Bienstock deferred to Mr. Stephen Baldwin to present the unaudited financial
statements for the month of February 2021 and the year-to-date period ending February
28, 2021. Highlights of the report follows:
e CAT has spent the last $85,000 of the CARES funding in February 2021.
$500,000 of the CARES funding is being held to pay for driver barriers.
¢ Fixed Route 2021/2020 YTD revenues down 41% and expenses up 0.9%.
Paratransit 2021/2020 YTD revenues down 37% and expenses down 15%



CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY
901 N. Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101

e YTD Overtime is down $460K over the prior year; $311K of which has been since
the new contract rules have been applied.

Mr. Richard Farr stressed that sustainability continues to be an issue and it is hoped
that CAT will receive additional funding in the 3 round of CARES funds.

Mr. Al Bienstock moved to accept the Fébruary 2021 CAT Financial Report, seconded
by Mr. Richard Kotz, motion approved.

OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussed returning to in person meetings for the April Board meeting. Public comment
would still be requested in writing and Zoom would remain for anyone who is not
comfortable with returning to in person meetings.

FUTURE PROCUREMENTS

There are no future procurements.

RESOLUTIONS

RESOLUTION 2110 — APPROVING ADMINISTRATORS FOR M&T BANK CREDIT CARD

Motion to approve was raised by Mr. Chad Saylor, seconded by Mr. Al Bienstock, and
passed unanimously.

Ms. LaToya Bellamy asked Ms. Jill Nagy, if when listing administrators of accounts, if it
is better to list full names or use a title/position. Ms. Jill Nagy responded that full names
are best to use at this time.

RESOLUTION 2111 — LOCAL TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION RESOLUTION
CERTIFYING THE LOCAL MATCH FOR STATE OPERATING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Motion to approve was made by Mr. Scott Wyland conditioned upon receiving resolutions
from the funding partners, seconded by Mr. Al Bienstock.

Ms. LaToya Bellamy recommended amending the resolution to read that “said Board would
endeavor to secure the required local match funds.”



CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY
901 N. Cameron Street, Harrisburg, PA 17101

Ms. LaToya Bellamy made a motion to amend Resolution 2111, seconded by Mr. Richard
Kotz, and passed unanimously.

STAFF REPORT

Mr. Chad Saylor discussed the bridge owned by CAT and the liability which this puts on
CAT. Mr. Richard Farr responded PennDOT reports there are no concerns with this
bridge and there is possible potential for this in the future as a pedestrian bridge adding
it's important to maintain for public right away. Mr. Richard Farr will request that
Michael Baker International go out and survey the site for any further liability concerns.

Further staff updates provided by Mr. Richard Farr. Updates include:

e [-81 Transit Study

¢ Vaccine Transportation

e Market Square renovations and possible ribbon cutting event

e New facilities: No updates on new transfer center. New CAT facility was
approved for lot 14 on former old hospital grounds on Elmerton Avenue and
Sycamore Street.

e Middletown train station and parking lot management.

e SRTA resolutions by all counties including the City of Harrisburg have been
passed and received except for Cumberland County.

ADJOURNMENT

The next scheduled Board meeting will take place on April 29, 2021 at 12:00pm.
A motion was made by Mr. Scott Wyland to adjourn the regularly scheduled meeting.

An Executive Session will be held directly following to discuss personnel matters. The
meeting adjourned at 12:42pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Secretary



- Capital Area Transit

MO

To: Capital Area Transit Board Members
From: Brian Gillette, Accounting Manager

Date: April 22,2021

Re: March 2021 CAT Financial Report (Unaudited)

Attached are Capital Area Transit’s (CAT) unaudited financial statements for the month of
March 2021 and the year-to-date period ending March 31, 2021.

Items of Interests:
e CAT’s CARES funding total award is $ 14,630,648, of which we have received

$14.2M.

e Fixed Route 2021/2020 YTD: Revenues: down 39%, Expenses: up 0.7%.
e Paratransit 2021/2020 YTD: Revenues: down 34%, Expenses: down 13%

e YTD Overtime is down $534K over the prior year

e  March MTD/YTD Health Insurance Expenses

MTD Actual  YTD Actual YTD Budget
Gross Health Insurance $ 210310 $ 1,865,063 $ 1,995,084
Employee Premium Copay §$§ 20,307 $ 193,174 $ 277,668
Net Health Insurance $ 190,003 $ 1,671,889 § 1,717,416

e Overtime for March 2021 and YTD Period Ending March 31, 2021.

March 2021 YTD
Actual Budget Actual Budget
Operators $ 39,459 $ 102,623 $ 513,794 $ 958,167
Operations $ 1,628 $ 0 $ 1195 $ 0
Maintenance $ 10,039 § 34221 $ 116,715 $ 326,280
Admin. $ 139 § 0 b 864 § 0

§ 51,264 §136,844 § 643,338 $1,284,447



Fixed Route Division — March 2021
YTD Passengers Served: Passengers/Vehicle Hour

Revenue Passengers Per

Passengers Vehicle Hours  Rev. Vehicle Hours Change
2021 709,139 114,794 6.18 -63.02%
2020 1,521,636 91,089 16.70 unfavorable
2023 Goal 19.01
YTD Operating Expenditures: Operating Cost / Revenue Vehicle Hour

Operating Revenue Operating Cost Per

Expense Vehicle Hours  Rev. Vehicle Hours Change
2021 $ 12,385,770 114,794 $107.90 20.09%
2020 $12,298374 91,089 $135.01 favorable
2023 Goal Notto Exceed $ 154.61
YTD Operating Revenue: Operating Revenue / /Revenue Vehicle Hour

Operating Revenue Operating Rev. Per

Revenue Vehicle Hours  Rev. Vehicle Hours Change

2021 $ 1,386,893 114,794 $ 12.08 -51.72%
2020 $ 2,279,459 91,089 $ 25.02 unfavorable
2023 Goal $ 27.25
YTD Operating Expense: Operating Cost / Passenger

Operating Operating Cost

Expense Passengers Per Passenger Change
2020 $ 12,385,770 709,139 $ 1747 -116.10%
2019 $12,298374 1,521,636 $ 8.08 unfavorable
2023 Goal Notto Exceed $ 8.13

Paratransit Division — March 2021

Revenue

MTD YTD Change
2021 $ 237,439 $ 1,834,337 -33.79%
2020 $ 245,001 $ 2,770,558 unfavorable
Expenses

MTD YTD Change
2021 $ 407,946 $ 3,350,163 12.73%
2020 - $ 359,979 - § 3,838,648 ' favorable

YTD Expenses are 21% favorable to budget by $922K

® Page 2



Capital Area Transit
Balance Sheet - Summary
As of March 31, 2021

2021 2020
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 9,933,164 308,512
Investments 15,266 15,204
Accounts Receivable 432,780 647,484
Capital Grants Receivable 3,081,144 1,441,790
Op. Assist. & Planning Grants Receivable - 86,143
Inventory 411,175 394,729
Prepaids 453,661 542,204
Total Current Assets 14,327,189 3,436,067
Capital Assets
Fixed Assets 60,415,622 60,847,478
Accumulated Depreciation (35,291,234) (37,383,362)
Net Capital Assets 25,124,388 23,464,116
Other Assets 75,915 75,915
Total Assets 39,527,492 26,976,098
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2,410,046 1,043,683
Accrued Wages & Payroll-Related Accruals 923,353 780,993
Payroll Withholdings - Taxes 12,753 11,444
Short-Term Debt & Accrued Interest ; o . 30,186
Accrued Expenses 579,287 579,526
Advances for Working Capital 635,802 667,314
Deferred Operating & Capital Grants 9,735,356 747,406
Total Current Liabilities 14,296,598 3,860,552
Long-Term Liabilities 438,017 324,051
Total Liabilities 14,734,614 4,184,604
Net Position 24,792,878 22,791,494
Total Liab, Total Def Inflow & Net Position 39,527,492 26,976,098

Printed 4/21/2021 4:27 PM 1



(vze'see) (zo6LS) - - 0 - 0
899'8v8°0T 925'202'T S§L2'S96'BT Y02'0EY' VT €0L'VIS'TT SbL'L8S'T €95'0VE‘T
6V6'6EC'E PTT'PSE L69'SOT‘TT ¥.L'868°6 0212666 LOL'E0V €TE'80p
S98'E08'9 865'79L ESL'Y9L'9 ¥9S'STLE YYSEL9'T 80E'/80'T  6SE'TYE
SS8'v08 $TL'S8 SZ8V60T 998'S18 ovo'vv8 0EL'96 268'68
(£66'980'TT) (8zp‘092't) (5£2'596'8T)  (v0Z'OEV'vT) (E0L'¥TS'ZT) (Sv2'85't)  (29S'0vET)
TT0'LET'9T €50°LL9'T 90526’ S90'€0T'8T  TE6'SEL'ST LY0'6Y6'T  bOS'LTL'T
€TL'E ETY 001's SZB'E 6tLE 147 -
0€0°8S 6SE'L 00001 86b'L sL vES 5
085'L 0sT'T 000'sS 8vL'ty L09VT v8s'y 0st
6SE'TT 600C 0L5'T6 6£989 8661 TEY'L 90T‘T
86L'085'T VLL'TYT 9€T'S9EC 0L9°8L'T TTL'092'T 6t7L'98T ST6'LST
S60°T L8 TIv'T S90'T 818 144" 88
8TZ'ITY 44377 EV0'9LS TEQ'TEY LYS'80Y €008V 89.LvY
LB9EST 66Z'TE €TV 6EE 0LY's9T ¥78'152 TE6'6T veL'ee
108985 8ES'LL STI'9T6 09789 LYY LYS EIT'6L 022'v0T
¥96'98 €219 T9€'ZST 968'ETT LEE'TY TET'ET Te's
6E8'T96 ws's6 898'€TY'T S00v90'T 895'€E8 96S'€7T 629'L6
8EL'SLL ¥e1'0CT 929°200T LTL'SSL 899ET8 £96'E8 890'€8
T8T'88E'TT STL'SYT'T £v8°0869T 9SE'LLBTT  €6S'6IS'TT 6S8°0LE'T  SBT'O6T'T
809'6L6'C 8ET'0ET 780150t £00'SLZ'E 908€60°E 0ET'EET 629'0Z¢
¥08°T85'T S0b'89T ETT099'C €85'876'T 688TL9'T EVB'EPT £00°06T
796'TSE VET'TY T0S'T09 8796ty TYE06E LLE'TS EST'6Y
LLLLOET 888°LYT 668'S68'T TTEQTY'T T16902'T 8Y6'v9T STT'8ET
TeL'soL vL9'se 826'TT0'T vSTLSL TEBVEL 052’88 80€'18
80E'LSY'Y 9LE'T8Y 6TE09L'9 £95°050'S vI8'TCY'y 112'885 LLE'0TS
610°050°S ST99TY TET'656'Y 198249 8TT'TTL'E Z0E‘T9E TY6'9LE
£86'606'C 096'evC 908°018'C 2981907 9580607 6TC2LT LTL'The
9£0'0rTT $99'27LT STY8YTC 6660T9'T CTLEOETT €80'68T STZ'vET
en3ay |enjay 1°3png 123png |enjoy 393png |enyy
alA ald |enuuy alaA ald

0C0T 483 [edsl4

TZOT 4B3A [Bdsl4

20T ‘T€ Y21 Sulpu3 poliad ay3 Jo4
pauiquio) - Juswajels awoouj

lisuel] ealy |eyiden

Wd 8T:v TzoZ/Te/v paiuld

CRVEIETI]

Apisqns [ejol
Aptsgns |esapad
Apisqng a3eis
Apisqns (e207
Apisqns

(3242Q) snyding

sasuadxj [ejol

5|ejuay 1g saseaq

1s3J93u|

uoljowold g Bunayien

SNO3UR||IISIA

30IAI3S JO 3seyaund

Saxe].

Aupger g Ayjensen

saniin

sa1jddns g sjelsien

saqn] 1g sadi|

1an4

SBIIAIBS

Jogeq [ejo)

sadul4 B30 - Joge
aouesnsu| yijesH - Joge
aANelISIuIWpPY - JogeT
3ouBUBUIB - JOGET
Woddns suoijesadQ - Joqe]
siojesadp - Jogeq

Jogeq

sasuadxy

anuaAay |ejol

anuanay J3y30

anuaAay JaBuassed
anuanay



(vze'se) (zoe'Ls) = ~ 0 = 0
8L5'08L'6 BrS‘LBO‘T ETT'961'9T VZE'BBT'ZT  LLB'BG6'OT 6EL'OTET 9500LT'T
658'TLT'C 9€T'6ET SES'9EE'8 ¥68'9SL'L v6Z'18b'8 T0L'9¢T 908°LET
S98°€08'9 B65'29L ESL'YIL'D ¥9S'STLE YYS'€EL9T 80E'£80'T 6SE'TYB
S58v08 rIL's8 SZ8'v60'T 998's18 ovo'vv8 0€L'96 6868
(€06'870°01) (TSt'spT’T) (ETT'961°9T) (bze'882'2T) (L£8'866'0T)  (6EL°DIE'T)  (SS0'0LT'T)
Z9E'862°2T bLO'LTE'T Iv5'SS2'8T YOL'OEB'ET  89L°SBEZT YEL'TEH'T 85S'60E'T
ETLE €Tt 00T's ST8'E 6yL'E (122 =
€25CS 1999 8206 69L9 89 €S¢L -
08S°L 0sZ'T 000'SS 8YT'Th £09'vT 185y oSy
EBE'ST 60b'T TS0'(9 6205 0v0'9tT 885'S vz8
LOT'vTT 8y1've 966'S6E S66'STE 066'52C €79'9€ 005'62

- . 5 - g " -
62L°6LT 6.9°0€ 578'C6E 919'v6¢ 6TL'6LT 9EL'TE 979'0¢
Y6S'LLT 850'2C STL'SET TE6'VBT 655'SLT 148°0C 790'€T
T1v'20S 19199 vZ'v8L TET'S8S 8Sh'LTy 9v9°L9 900'SYy
18509 €219 19L1TT 06L'06 v68'TS Lys'or TYE'S
T6E'L6L ¥61'98 899'6LT'T 209°6L8 6T9'60L 8L1°T0T 0Z0'v8
911'589 198'90T ¥98TL8 8t9'vS9 OvE'vOL 8EL'TL L9T'LL
SEZ'96Y'6 61T°L96 18Z'9ET'VT 9SB'CIL'OT  £L0L'9LL'6 SYO'LET'T T9S'ET0'T
09€'8Lt'T Tv6'06T 6/7'98E'E 0E0'8EL'T 6L1°L09°C 9T'v61 0T8T
TESVIT'T OEE'6ZT 958'€70'C Y6TL9Y'T STI'6ZE'T 075's8T T58'7ST
858'68¢ T09'vE 796'€6Y €LE'BOE SS5°02€ [44: 347 S9EOY
665°LL0'T BEEZTT €TL'9Y9'T TUL9'LTT'T (A ZATALI R 088'THT T10'9TT
855805 STL'ES 11992 98£'955 TYE'LOS 008'v9 STy'Ls
OEE'LT6'E EBL'9EY 0SE‘GES'S TOL'YSE'Y €92'566'€ 118905 6879V
09b'642'C £29'TLT 8Zb'650'C 0BE'ZHST T68'98E'T S66'08T €05'6ET
TOS'€0E (90'TT 200’0Vt 90b'v0T £98°LYE 15T'2T 89€'LT
6S6'SL6'T 955°09T 9ZY'6T6'T VL6'LEY'T 8Z0'6E0'T vb8'89T SET'TLT

|enldy lenidy 123png 3a8png lenjoy 193png |endy
ata aid lenuuy aiA aLd

0207 423, |easiy

TZ0T 123 [BdS1y

1207 ‘T€ Yase Bulpu3 poliad ay) Jo4
330y paxiy - Alewwng JuaWwajels awoou|
jisuel] ealy |eyide)

Apisans

(32

aduzIsylg

Apisqns |ejoL
Apisgns [eJapay
Apisqns aie15
Apisgns jeao]

aq) snjdins

sasuadxj je3o)

s|ejuay 1g sasea
FECYEHTT]

uojjowo.d g Sunayiepy

SNoaue||a3siA

92IAJBS JO 3seYIIng

saxe]

Aiigen g Asjensen

saiinn

saljddns 1 sjeliaepy

saqny g saJf|
[ELP]
[ENISEL

Joqe [e30)

saduid Jay3o - Joge
aduesnsuj YijesH - Joqeq
anleNsIuIWpY - Joge]
2dUeUIIUIE - JogeT]

1ioddns suo

nesado - Joge

siojesadQ - Joge

sasuadxy

anuanay

Jogeq

3nuaAay jejo)
ELIEVENEETTH )
saled JaBuassed

Wd 62:% TZ0Z/TZ/v pauld



¥ Wd 6Z:v TZ0Z/Tz/v paiud

- & z - ERIVEETTg]
060'890°T BLG'VTT T9T°69LC 08B8'IYT‘'T  9Z8'SIST 900°LLT £0S‘0LT Apisqns [ejor
060'890'T 8L6VTT 291'69L'T 088‘TYT'T  928'STS'T 900°LLT L0S0LT . Apisqns |eJapay

" - - - - Apisqns ajeis
= - - Apisgns |e307

Apisgng
(060'890°T) (846VTT) (z91'69£2) (o88tv1‘e) (928'STS'T) (900'2£2) (£0s‘04T) (3121y8q) snyding
6v9'8E8'€E 6L6'6SE §96'899°S TI9E'TLZ'Y  €9T'0SE‘E £IE'LSY 96°L0Y sasuadxy |ejoL
- - - - - - - m_mucum Q Sases]
L0S‘s 869 we 62L L 18 - 53131y
9L6'S 009 81S've £8€'8T 8E6'E EVO'T [4:14 snoaue([23sIN
169'99€'T 9T9'LTT ovT'696'T SL9'T9V'T  TEL'VEO'T 921'0ST A &: 74 . 82IMIBS JO 3seydungd
S60'T L8 TIY'T S90'T 608 A" 88 saxe|
68V'TET EVT'VT 8TC'E8T 9T LET 818'8CT £9T'ST WI'vl Aujigen 3 Ajjensey
voT'9L wi's 869€0T 8€5'08 S9Z'9L 090°6 7996 saninn
06E'v8 LLE'TT V88'TET ELV'66 066'61T L9¥'TT STZ'6S sayddng g sjeuazen
€8E0T = 009°0E 90Ttz IS A $89'C - sagny 1 sall|
Lyv'v9T 8vETT 00¢'vve €0V'v8T 8V6'ETT 8I¥'Ie 809'ET [ang
129'06 €97'ST 9L'VET 690'10T LTE'60T 6CC'TT 106'S $9IIAIBS
9v6'168'T 965'8LT 295'v8‘T 00S‘v9T‘T  988°2YL'T bI8'EET ve9‘aLT loqeq |ejoL
82105 962'6€ £08'v99 €L6°9€ES L7998y 890°6€ 602'9€ sagul4 JayyQ - Joge
€L2'L9E ¥L0'6E LST'9E9 6819V €9L'TVE €ZE'8S ¢STLE dJueJNSU| Y3jeaH - JogeT
Y0T’€9 EES'L 0vs‘¢oT SST'T8 £8L'69 S0S'6 88L'8 _ 3AleJIslUIWPY - Joge
8L1'08C 055'ST 9.9'6¥C 69'88T 049681 8902t S0T'ze adueuajulel - Joge]
¥91°00¢ 05612 LTE'S9T 89v'00T 88b°L2T 0SY'ET £88'ET Hoddnsg suopesadq - Joge
86625 €6T'SY 696'026 998569 05592y 00t'18 8818y siojesadQ - Joge
Joge
sasuadxy
6SS'0LLT 100'sHZ £08°668'C T8V'0ET'T  LEE'DERT LOE08T 6EVLET anuanay |e30L
78v'309' €68'TET ¥08°0£9°C 9SY'LS6'T  TE6'THLT 890°091 6SE'STT anuanay 1ay30
LLO'V9T 60TZT 66682¢ STO'ELT SYET6 6€C0t 080'ZT saJed Ja3uassed
: CLIVENH]
lenjoy lenyoy 198png 128png |enyy 128png lenyoy
ala ald lenuuy ala ald

020¢ 4834 |BdS14 T20Z 123, |easty

20T 'T€ YaJeiN Bulpu3 polad ay3 Jo4
lisuejeled - Alewwns juswajels swoou|
lisues] ealy |eyide)



RESOLUTION NO. 2112

RENEWAL OF TRIPARTITE AGREEMENT WITH SHIPPENSBURG UNIVERSITY,
SHIPPENSBURG UNIVERSITY STUDENT SERVICES, INC. AND CAT

WHEREAS, CAT wishes to maintain the working agreement with Shippensburg
University and the University's Student Services for the Raider Regional Transit (RRT) bus
service on and around the University Campus, and

WHEREAS, the service will operate 52 weeks a year not to exceed 5,000 hours of
service, and

WHEREAS, the public fare for this service is $1.30 per boarding and free for all
Shippensburg University ID cards, and

WHEREAS, the University will provide up to $17,500 per year and the Student Service
will pay four payments of $32,682.75 for a total of $130,731 for 2021-2022 academic year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors that the Executive
Director be authorized to execute the Shippensburg Raider Regional Transit agreement for the
period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS
OF
CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY

| certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally
convened meeting of the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority Board Members held
an April 29, 2021.

attest:

Richard Kotz Eric Bugaile

Secretary Chairman



RESOLUTION NO. 2113

APPROVING THE REVISING OF THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEE
HANDBOOK

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to update established guidelines in order to maintain a
work environment that outlines the policies and procedures for managers and employees; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is committed to equal opportunity with respect to all aspects of its
employment practices; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is committed to conducting business which presents an actual or
potential conflict of interest (Code of Conduct); and

WHEREAS, the Authority is committed to maintaining a work environment that is consistent
and free of discrimination. In keeping with this commitment, the Authority will include employment
policies in one booklet to serve as a guideline for employees and managers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cumberland-
Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority, that the revision of the Authority Administrative Employee
Handbook be adopted and instituted.

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS

OF
CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY

| certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally
convened meeting of the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority Board Members held
on April 29,.2021.

Attest:
Rich Kotz Eric Bugaile
Secretary Chairman




RESOLUTION NO. 2114

HONORING MAINTENANCE MANAGER MARK MITCHELL
FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE AUTHORITY
MAY 18, 1982 — JUNE 30, 2021

WHEREAS, Mark Mitchell began his public service as a mechanic in Dauphin County in 1982
before advancing to various leadership positions; and

WHEREAS, during his tenure at the Authority, Mark has overseen and been an integral part of
vehicle and facility maintenance; and

WHEREAS, Mark has been invaluable with the advancement of countless projects and most
recently the pursuit of modernization with the assistance of the implementation of the new fare
technologies for the Authority; and

WHEREAS, Mark’s exceptional quality of work and commitment to the organization to help
achieve its mission did not go unnoticed; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cumberland-Dauphin-
Harrisburg Transit Authority that it formally acknowledges the truly outstanding performance and years
of service of Mark Mitchell in his role as Maintenance Manager of the Transportation Authority.

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS
OF
CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY

I certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally convened
meeting of the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority Board Members held on April 29,

2021.

attest:

Richard Kotz Eric Bugaile
Secretary Chairman




RESOLUTION NO. 2115

AUTHORIZING ADVANCING THE SERVICE PLAN TO THE PUBLIC COMMENT
PHASE

WHEREAS, the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority (CAT) was facing a
$1.8 million unfunded budget; and

WHEREAS, CAT has been working toward fiscal stability by focusing on several areas,
including operational efficiencies, collective bargaining contract modifications and service
madifications; and

WHEREAS, CAT has been working for over eighteen months on evaluating and
retooling the service, including routing and time tables; and

WHEREAS, this effort has a focus on reducing deadhead miles and hours, to improve
the predictability of the schedules, to reduce the number of peak service hours and to modify
overall service hours and miles; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors that staff be
authorized to advance the service plan to the public comment phase.

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS
OF
CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY

| certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally convened
meeting of the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority Board Members held on April

29, 2021.

attest:

Richard Kotz ' ' Eric Bugaile

Secretary Chairman



RESOLUTION NO. 2115
FACT SHEET

Staff used the new scheduling software to evaluate and model the changes being proposed.
The goal is to produce efficient route schedules & optimization of revenue hours per bus.

¢ Results:
a.) Better experience for passengers
1. More standardized schedules resulting in easier to follow
2. More predictable frequencies- built around 30, 45, 60 and 90-minute standards
b.) Reduces Operating Cost- $355K to 600K
c.) Reduces full-time Operators from 95 to 86
d.) Reduces busses at Peak from 61 to 52
e.) Reduces weekly Paid Hours from 3,384 to 3,160
f.) Implementation of street reliefs

The total structural deficit at the present time with the present ridership is $1.8M.

This change saves between $355K and $600K in direct driver cost. That equates to between
$620K and $950K cost reduction with benefits, fuel and related overhead.

There was a $1.2M fare reduction from the Covid-19 restrictions so whatever amount is
recovered will reduce the deficit farther. Other identified areas to examine for cost reductions
include maintenance department improvements and fare increases.

e Additional needed improvements include:
a.) Shared Ride Fare increase
b.) Partial recovery of lost fares and ridership (from Covid-19)
c.) Vehicle maintenance efficiency improvements
d.) Other operational efficiencies

Within the peak hour commuter subgroup, riders that work as employees within the Capitol
Complex areas and other government facilities will most likely be affected by the following route-
specific changes:

e Route 2 — Removal of midday service through Capitol Complex

¢ Route 9 — Removal of PA State Police stop due to low ridership

* Route 23X — Service to Millersburg and Elizabethville combined into a single trip, using a
larger transit vehicle for added capacity

e Route 81X — Low ridership trips removed; local service through Carlisle on most trips

e Route 82X — Route is proposed for elimination due to low ridership

Timeline:

May 3: Release of public materials / Public Comment Period Begins
June 1: Last Day of Public Comment

June 24: Board Approval for Finalized CAT 2020 Plan

September 7: Implementation



RESOLUTION NO. 2116
AMENDING EMPLOYEE SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY

WHEREAS, in order to promote safe operations and to comply with the requirements of
Federal Law, 49 CFR Part 40, 49 CFR Part 49 and 49 CFR Part 655, the Authority had previously
adopted an Employee Substance Abuse Policy, with specific attention to its “Safety Sensitive”
employees; and,

WHEREAS, US Department of Transportation has published their Final Rule to the
‘Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs: Addition of
Certain Schedule Il Drugs to the Department of Transportation’s Drug-Testing Panel and
Certain Minor Amendments’; and,

WHEREAS, the Authority must modify its existing Employee Substance Abuse Palicy to
reflect those changes; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cumberland-
Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority that the existing Employee Substance Abuse Policy be
amended in order to comply with current regulations and become effective on April 29, 2021.

CERTIFICATION OF OFFICERS
OF
CUMBERLAND-DAUPHIN-HARRISBURG TRANSIT AUTHORITY
I certify that the foregoing is a sound and true copy of a Resolution adopted at a legally convened

meeting of the Cumberland-Dauphin-Harrisburg Transit Authority Board Members held on April
29, 2021.

attest:
Rich Kotz Eric Bugaile
Secretary Chairman




CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT

SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY FOR SAFETY
SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES
Updated April 29, 2021

Capital Area Transit
901 N. Cameron Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101
Phone: 717-233-5657

Fax: 717-674-5977

Revised: April 28, 2021



Table of Contents

FPURPOSE ...ttt 4
Contact Person/Designated Employer Representative (DER) .........o.oooovoeeeeeeoeeoen 4
DEFINITION OF TERMS ...ttt 5

I BCIOPE .. covsnnmsnunrves s svisassn o555k 8s kinionbossaseies nosvsamyarpensss i es soots s s smiAas o Aen e SfEpRE RS 1

A.  COVERED EMPLOYEES ..ottt 1
B.  PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES........coi it 2
C.  PRESCRIPTION DRUG USE .......cocvieiiicveieieie ettt ees e eeres e 2
D. REFUSALTO SUBMIT TO A TEST. ..ottt eeeeee e, 2
E. FAIL A SUBSTANCE ABUSE TEST (TEST POSITIVE)....c.coivveveeeieeseeeereereens 3
F.  PASS (TEST NEGATIVE) / FAIL (TEST POSITIVE) AN ALCOHOL TEST......4
G. DISCIPLINARY ACTION AS A RESULT OF A POSITIVE TEST .eovveveeveene, 4
H. PASS A SUBSTANCE ABUSE TEST (TEST NEGATIVE) ....ccceovvvereeeereeeennn. 5
l. NEGATIVE-DILUTE URINE SPECIMEN ..........coocoviiie oot 5

Il QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT AND PROHIBITED CONDUCT ................. 5

IV TESTS REQUIRED ..ottt 5
A. PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING .....ooiiiiiiteee ettt sn et eeneneen 6
B. POST-ACCIDENT TESTING .....ooiuiiiteiet ettt eeeee e 7
C. RANDOM TESTING. ..ottt e et e eeseeesseeeen e ee s esnseassenes 8
D. REASONABLE SUSPICION TESTING........c.cooiiiiiieieeee e ee e oo eeiaies 8
E. RETURNTODUTY TESTING .......c.ooiiiioiotiteoe oo e, 9
F. FOLLOW-UP TESTING (AFTER RETURNING TO DUTY) oo 9
G. FOLLOW-UP TESTING PAYMENT : ...t 9

V DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING PROCEDURES.............cocveoieeioieeeeeeeeer e 9
A. COMPLIANCE WITH TESTING PROCEDURES.........ccoooeeiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeerern, g
B. BREATH ALCOHOL TECHNICIAN. ..ottt 10
C. SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROFESSIONAL (SAP)......cotiocete e e eeereeeeee e 10
D. MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER (MRO)......cooiiiieeiiiieie oo eeeeeeee e eeeaeer oo eeeennn 10
E. COLLECTION SITE .......... A VAR AR5 S o s e RS e 10
F. TESTING LABORATORY ...t eee e seesnne e en e 10

VI ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS ... 10
A. EMPLOYEE EDUCATION AND TRAINING .........cooovioiiieaeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeen, 10



C. ACCESS TO FACILITIES AND RECORDS .........ocoooovieeierce et eni s 11

VIIE COMPLIANCE ..ot et 12
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE .........ocooviieiemeeiei et 12
Vill CONTRACTOR’S / VENDORS COMPLIANCE ..............cocooviiioeeeeeeeeeee. 13

PRTIRIA v onsus e mennsmic s k4005l B4 i e s s e e eSSBS T 14
IXo APPENDIX ...ttt ettt rnenien 16
SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROFESSIONAL (SAP) ..ot 16
MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER (MROJ......ccectriiiiireriiciere e eeesteeesesneie e stesssnscerssissssns 16

APPROVED COLLECTION FACILITIES ......cocvevenn.... Error! Bookmark not defined.



| PURPOSE

The purpose of Capital Area Transit's Substance Abuse Policy is to create a safe working
environment free from the effects of drugs & alcohol by establishing guidelines in
implementing a drug and alcohol-testing program that meets the requirements of the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The ultimate goal of the policy is to achieve a drug
and alcohol-free work force in the interest of the health and safety of employees and the
public. Each Capital Area Transit employee will receive at least one hour training in the
requirements contained within this policy. Employees must notify Capital Area Transit of
any criminal drug stature conviction for a violation occurring while on duty no later than 5
days after conviction. In turn, Capital Area Transit must notify the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) within 10 days after receiving notice of such conviction whether it is
from the employee or other sources (e.g. the palice or the courts).

Participation in the prohibited substance-testing program is a requirement of each Safety
sensitive employee and, therefore, is a condition of employment.

Capital Area Transit will strictly adhere to all standards of confidentiality and assures all
employees that testing records and results will be released only to those autharized by
FTA rules to receive such information.

In accordance with 49CFR Part 40 and Part 655 this (revised) substance abuse policy
was adopted by the Board of Directors of Capital Area Transit on April 29, 2021 as
Resolution number [insert]. This palicy supersedes all previous Capital Area Transit
policies prior to April 29, 2021.

Alltesting under the FTA requirements are conducted in accordance with 49CFR Part 40:
Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs. Capital
Area Transit requires all safety-sensitive employees to submit to a post-accident drug and
alcohol test required under Section 655.44, a random drug and/or alcohol test required
under Section 655.45, a reasonable suspicion drug and/or alcohol test required under
Section 655.43, a Return to duty drug and/or breath alcohol test under Section 655.46,
or a follow-up drug and/or alcohal test required under Section 655.47. Any employee who
refuses to submit to such a test will be removed for their safety-sensitive position.

Contact Person/Designated Employer Representative (DER)

The person designated by Capital Area Transit to address questions relevant to the anti-
drug and alcohol misuse prevention program is:

Human Resources Manager and Designee
Capital Area Transit
901 N. Cameron Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101
Phone: 717-233-5657 ext. 5119
Fax: 717-674-5977

Any policy element that is not mandated through FTA regulations or DOT is indicated in
italics throughout as company policy.



DEFINITION OF TERMS

Accident An occurrences associated with the operation of a vehicle if, as a result:
An individual dies;
An individual suffers a bodily injury and immediately receives medical treatment away from the
scene of the accident;
An occurrence where a public transportation vehicle is involved, revenue or non-revenue, and
one or more other vehicles incurs disabling damage or makes them inoperative;
An occurrence where a public transportation vehicle is removed from revenue service.

Adulterated specimen. A specimen that has been altered, as evidenced by test results showing either a
substance that is not a narmal constituent for that type of specimen or showing an abnormal
concentration of an endogenous substance.

Affiliate Persons are affiliates of one another if, directly or indirectly, one controls or has the power to
control the ather, or a third party controls or has the power to control both. Indicia of control
include, but are not limited to: interlocking management or ownership, identity of shared interest
among family members, shared facilities or equipment, common use of employees, or a business
entity organization following the issuance of a public interest exclusion which has the same or
similar management, ownership, or principal employees as the service agent concerning whom a
public interest exclusion is in effect.

Air blank A reading by an evidential breath testing device of ambient air containing no alcohol. (In
evidential breath testing devices using gas chromatography technology, a reading of the device's
internal standard.)

Alcohol. The intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol or other low molecular weight
alcohols, including methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

Alcohol concentration. The alcaohol in a volume of breath expressed in terms of grams of alcohol per
210 liters of breath as indicated by a breath test under this part.

Alcohol screening device (ASD) A breath or saliva device, other than an EBT, that is approved by the
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) and appears on ODAPC's Web page for
“Approved Screening Devices to Measure Alcohal in Bodily Fluids” because it conforms to the
model specifications from NHTSA.

Alcohol use The drinking or swallowing of any beverage, liquid mixture or preparation (including any
medication), centaining alcohol.

Blind specimen or blind performance test specimen. A urine specimen submitted to a laboratory for
quality control testing purposes, with a fictitious identifier, so that the labaratory cannot distinguish
it from employee specimens, and which is spiked with known quantities of specific drugs or which
is blank, containing no drugs.

Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) A trained and certified individual who instructs and assists individuals
in the alcohol testing process and operates an evidential breath testing device.

Canceled test In drug testing, a drug test that has been declared invalid by an MRO. A canceled test is
neither a positive nor a negative test. Far purposes of this part, a specimen that has been
rejected for testing by a laboratory is treated the same as a canceled test. In alcohol testing, a
test that is deemed to have a problem identified which cannat be or has not been corrected.

Chain of custody The procedure used to document the handling of the urine specimen from the time the
employee gives the specimen to the collector until the specimen is destroyed. This procedure
uses the Federal Drug Testing Custody and Control Form (CCF).

Collection container An authorized container into which the employee urinates to provide the specimen
for a drug test.



Collection site. A place selected by the employer where employees present themselves for the purpose
of providing a urine specimen for a drug test and/or a breath or saliva specimen for an alcohol
test.

Collector A trained individual who instructs and assists employees at a collection site, who receives and
makes an initial inspection of the urine specimen provided by those employees, and who initiates
and completes the CCF.

Confirmatory Drug Test A second analytical procedure performed on a different aliquot of the original
specimen to identify and quantify the presence of a specific drug or drug metabolite.

Confirmation (or confirmatory) test In drug testing: the test conducted by gas chromatography/mass
spectrometry (GC/MS) to confirm the presence of drug(s) or drug metabolite(s) detected by the
screening test at concentrations at or above cutoff concentrations established by the Department
of Health and Human Services. In alcohol testing: a second test using an evidential breath
testing device, following a screening test with a result of 0.02 or greater, that provides quantitative
data of the alcohol concentration.

Confirmed drug test A confirmation test result received by an MRO from a laboratory.

Designated employer representative (DER) An employer or individual(s) identified by the employer as
able to receive communications and test results directly from medical review officers, BATS,
screening test technicians, collectors, and substance abuse professionals, and who is authorized
to take immediate actions to remove employees from safety-sensitive duties and to make
required decisions in the testing and evaluation processes. Service agents cannot serve as
DERs, except where a DOT agency has issued regulations permitting them to do so.

Dilute specimen A urine specimen whose creatinine and specific gravity values are diminished by the
employee through the introduction of fluid (usually water) into the specimen either directly or
through excessive consumption of fluids.

DOT, The Department, DOT Agency These terms encompass all DOT agencies, including, but not
limited to, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA),
the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA), the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA), the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), the Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety Administration (PHMSA), and the Office of the Secretary (OST).

Drugs The drugs for which tests are required under this part and DOT agency regulations are marijuana,
cocaine, amphetamines, Phencyclidine (PCP), and opioids.

Employee An individual who is designated in a DOT agency regulation as subject to drug testing and/or
alcohol testing. The term includes individuals currently occupying safety-sensitive positions
designated in DOT agency regulations and applicants for employment subject to pre-employment
testing.

Employer An entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed)
that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part. The term includes
an employer's officers, representatives, and management personnel. The term, as used in this
document, references the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol
program requirements, as well as those individuals emplayed by the entity who take personnel
actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations. Service
agents are not regarded as emplayers, except where a DOT agency has issued regulations so
designating them.

Evidential Breath Testing Device (EBT) A device that is approved by the National Highway Traffic
Safety Administration (NHTSA) for the evidential testing of breath at the .02 and .04 alcohal
concentrations, and appears on ODAPC's Web page for Approved Evidential Breath
Measurement Devices" because it conforms with the model specifications available from NHTSA.



HHS The Department of Health and Human Services or any designee of the Secretary, Department of
Health and Human Services.

Initial Drug Test (Screening Drug Test) The test used to differentiate a negative specimen from one that
requires further testing for drugs or drug metabalites,

Initial Specimen Validity Test The first test used to determine if a urine specimen is adulterated, diluted,
substituted, or invalid.

Invalid Drug Test The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory in accordance with the criteria
established by HHS Mandatory Guidelines when a positive, negative, adulterated, or substituted
result cannot be established for a specific drug or specimen validity test.

Laboratory Any U.S. laboratory certified by HHS under the National Laboratory Cettification Program as
meeting the minimum standards of Subpart C of the HHS Mandatory Guidelines for Federal
Workplace Drug Testing Programs; or, in the case of foreign laboratories, a laboratory approved
for participation by DOT under this part.

Limit of Detection (LOD) The lowest concentration at which a measured and can be identified, but (for
quantitative assays) the concentration cannot be accurately calculated.

Limit of Quantification For quantitative assays, the lowest concentration at which the identity and
concentration of the measure and can be accurately established,

Medical Review Officer (MRO) A licensed physician (doctor of medicine or osteopathy) responsible for
receiving laboratory results generated by an employer's drug testing program who has knowledge
of substance abuse disorders and has appropriate training to interpret and evaluate an
individual's confirmed positive or unsuitable drug test results together with his or her medical
histary and any other relevant biomedical information. The MRO is also required to have a
working knowledge of this part and the DOT agency regulations applicable to the employer(s) for
which he or she evaluates drug test results.

Negative Result The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory to an MRO when a specimen
contains no drug or the concentration of the drug is less than the cutoff concentration for the drug
or drug class and the specimen is a valid specimen.

Notice In the context of a public interest exclusion proceeding, a written communication served in person
or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or its equivalent, to the last known address of a
service agent, its identified counsel, or agent for the service of process, or any partner, officer,
director, owner, or joint venture of the service agent. Notice, if undeliverable, shall be
cansidered to have been received by the addressee five days after being properly sent to the last
address known-by the Department. : : :

Positive Result The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory when a specimen contains a drug or
drug metabolite equal to or greater than the cutoff concentrations.

Primary specimen [n drug testing: the urine specimen that is opened and tested by a first laboratory to
determine whether the employee has drug(s}) or drug metabolite(s) in his or her system. The
primary specimen is distinguished from the split specimen, defined in this section.

Reconfirmed The result reported for a split specimen when the second laboratory is able to corroborate
the original result reported for the primary specimen.

Rejected for Testing The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory when no tests are performed for
a specimen because of a fatal flaw or a correctable flaw that is not corrected.

Screening test (or initial test) In drug testing: an immunoassay screen to eliminate ‘negative' urine
specimens from further analysis. In alcohol testing: an analytic procedure to determine whether
an employee may have a prohibited concentration of alcohol in a breath or saliva specimen.



Screening Test Technician (STT). A trained individual who instructs and assists individuals in the
alcohol testing process and operates an alcohol screening device.

Secretary The Secretary of Transportation or the Secretary's designee.

Service agents All parties who provide services to employers in connection with DOT drug and alcohol
testing requirements. This includes, but is not limited to, collection site personnel, BATs and
STTs, laboratories, MROs, substance abuse professionals, consortia, and third-party
administrators.

Shipping container A container that is used for transporting and protecting one or more urine specimen
bottle(s) and associated documents from the collection site to the laboratory.

Specimen bottle. The bottle that, after being sealed and labeled according ta the procedures in this part,
is used to hold the urine specimen during transportation to the laboratory.

Split specimen. A part of the urine specimen that is sent to the first laboratory and retained unopened,
and which will be transported to a second laboratory in the event that the employee requests it be
tested following a verified positive test of the primary specimen.

Split Specimen Collection A collection in which the urine collected is divided into two separate
specimen bottles, the primary specimen (Bottle A) and the split specimen (Bottle B).

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) A licensed physician (doctor of medicine or osteopathy); a
licensed or certified psychologist, sacial worker; a licensed or certified employee assistance
professional; a state-licensed or certified marriage and family therapist or a drug and alcohol
counselar (certified by the National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse
Counselors Certification Commission (NAADAC) or by the International Certification Reciprocity
Consortium / Alcohol & Other Drug Abuse (ICRC), or by the National Board for Certified
Counselors, Inc. and Affiliated/Master Addictions Councilor (NBCC)). All must have knowledge of
and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and controlled substances-
related disorders; must be knowledgeable about the SAP function as it relates to employer
interests in safety-sensitive duties; and must be knowledgeable about 43 CFR Part 40, the DOT
agency regulations applicable to the employers for whom you evaluate employees, and the DOT
SAP Guidelines, and you keep current on any changes to these materials The SAP is also
required to have a working knowledge of this part and the DOT agency regulation applicable to
the employer(s) for which he or she evaluates employees who have engaged in a DOT drug and
alcohol regulation violation.

Substituted specimen. A specimen, not consistent with human urine, that has been submitted by the
employee in place of his or her own urine.

Verified drug test. A certified laboratory drug test result that has undergone review and final
determination by the MRO.



Il SCOPE

In accordance with the Drug Free Work Place Act of 1988, an employee who is convicted
of any criminal drug statue for a violation occurring in the work place shall notify the Human
Resources Manager no later than five (5) days after such conviction.

A. COVERED EMPLOYEES
All full and part-time employees who perform safety-sensitive functions are subject to drug
and alcohol testing under this policy. Additionally, all full and part-time employees of any
company or organization who perform safety-sensitive functions on behalf of or under
contract with Capital Area Transit are subject to drug and alcohol testing under this policy.

Currently the FTA has defined safety-sensitive job functions as follows:
1. Employees operating revenue service vehicle, including when not in service.

2. Employees operating a non-revenue service vehicle, when required to be the holder
of a CDL.

3. Employees controlling dispatch or movement of a revenue service vehicle.

Employees maintaining a revenue service vehicle or equipment used in revenue
service.*

9. Employees carrying a firearm for security purposes.
*Recipients of Section 5311 funding who contract with an outside vendor for vehicle
maintenance are not required to include those mechanics in a drug and alcohol
testing program
Capital Area Transit has reviewed all the actual duties performed by employees to

determine who performs safety-sensitive functions, and has determined the below listed
job titles as performing safety-sensitive duties:

Chief Operations Officer Fixed Route Operator
Operations Manager o " Fixed Route Supervisor
Safety and Training Supervisor Paratransit Dispatcher
Training and Dispatch Supervisor Paratransit Operators (with and
Maintenance Manager without CDL)

Assistant Maintenance Manager Paratransit Supervisor

Page | 1



All Classes of Maintenance Mechanics All Classes of Paint & Body Repair

L] Specialist . Specialist

* Class A Mechanic s Class A Body Repairman

e 1% Class Mechanic 1%t Class Body Repairman

N 2”: Class Mechanic e 2™ Class Body Repairman

* 3% Class Mechanic e 34 Class Body Repairman

* Helper ¢ Helper

* Service Man e Building Maintenance/Body Repair
e Detail Vehicle Cleaner (with and without CDL)

e Transfer Center Maintenance

¢ Bus Hostler

All other positions to include Managers and Supervisors are subject to the provisions of
this policy only if they perform, or have the opportunity to perform a safety-sensitive
function.

B. PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES
Federal requirements provide authorization for testing only five drugs. Procedures used to
test for the presence of drugs are in accordance with 49CFR Part 40 and Part 655, which
requires conducting of urine specimens for five types of drugs or their metabolites;
marijuana, cocaine, opioids, phencyclidine, amphetamines, and, conducting breath alcohol
tests for the presence of alcohal.

Time of testing while on duty
Covered employees are subject to testing for five prohibited drugs at anytime while on duty.

C. PRESCRIPTION DRUG USE
The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not
prohibited. It is, however, the employee’s responsibility to inform the physician of the
employee’s job duties and determine from the physician, or other health care professional,
whether or not the prescribed drug may impair-their job performance or metal or other -
functions. Itis the responsibility of the employee to remove themselves from service if they

are unfit for duty.

Employees are required to report the use of medically authorized drugs or other
substances that may create a direct threat by impairing job performance of safety-sensitive
functions to his/her supervisor and provide proper written medical authorization to work
from a physician.

Failure to report the use of such drugs or failure to provide proper evidence of medical
authorization may result in disciplinary action.

D. REFUSAL TO SUBMIT TO A TEST.
A Refusal to test is defined as: Any employee or applicant who;

1) Fails to appear or appear within a reasonable time (except for pre-
employment) for drug and/or alcohol tests is a refusal;




2) Fails to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete, except in
pre-employment situations where leaving before the testing process begins is not
deemed to be a test refusal;

3) Fails to provide a urine specimen, breath, or saliva specimen as required by U.S.
DOT Part 40;

4) Fails to permit the observation or monitoring of specimen collection when it is
required,;

5) Fails to provide a sufficient amount of urine or breath specimen without a valid
medical reason;

6) Fails or refusal to take a second test when required:;

7) Fails to undergo a medical examination when required;

8) Fails to cooperate with any part of the collection process (Example: refuse to empty
pockets or wash hands after being directed to do so by the collector, or behaving
in a confrontational manner that disrupts the collection process);

9) \Verification from the MRO stating the test was adulterated or substituted:;

10) Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device that could be used to interfere with
the collection process

11) Admit to the collector or MRO that you adulterated or substituted a specimen;

12) For an observed collection, failure to follow an observer's instructions to raise your
clothing above the waste, lower clothing and underpants, and to turn around to
permit the observer to determine if individual is wearing any type of prosthetic
device that could be used to interfere with the collection process;

13) In Alcohol testing, refusal to sign Step 2 of the Alcohol Testing From (ATF);

14) Leaving the scene of the accident without just cause prior to submitting to post-
accident tests.

If the MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or substituted test result that
test is considered a positive test. ' '

A refusal to be drug tested is considered a positive test.

The Authority reserves the right to terminate any employee who refuses to submit to a drug
or alcohol test under conditions contained in this policy.

E. FAIL A SUBSTANCE ABUSE TEST (TEST POSITIVE)
As stated earlier, a refusal to submit to a drug test is considered a positive test result for

that test.

If the confirmation test result shows positive evidence of the presence, under 49CFR Part
40 procedures, of a prohibited drug the MRO will make a reasonable effort, as outlined in
49CFR Part 40, to contact the tested employee to inform him/her that a verified positive
drug test or refusal to test because of adulteration or substitution has been returned.

At that time the MRO must interview the employee, either face-to-face or over the
telephone, to determine a valid medical reason for the presence of the prohibited




substance. The tested employee will have 72 hours to request a test of the split-specimen.
If the tested employee does not request this test it will not be conducted.

If the split specimen test result is the same (reconfirmed) as the original test, it is a positive
test. If the split specimen test result failed to reconfirm, the test is cancelled.

As a result of a cancelled test the tested employee will be required to provide another
specimen under direct supervision.

If the MRO reports to the DER that an employee tested positive for drugs, that employee
will be immediately removed from safety sensitive functions and is subject to disciplinary
action outlined in Section H of this policy. In addition, the employee will be referred to a
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP).

The cost of any treatment or rehabilitation services will be paid directly by the employee
or their insurance provider. Employees will be allowed to take accumulated sick leave
and vacation leave to participate in the prescribed rehabilitation program.

F. PASS (TEST NEGATIVE) / FAIL (TEST POSITIVE) AN ALCOHOL TEST
As stated earlier a refusal to submit to an alcohol test is considered a positive test result
for that test.

If the screening test result indicates an alcohol concentration above 0.02 the tested
employee will be required to submit to a canfirmation test. If the confirmation test result is
above 0.02 and below 0.04 the employee will not be permitted to perform safety sensitive
functions for a period of 8 hours.

If the confirmation test result is 0.04 or greater it is a positive test. The employee will
immediately be removed from safety sensitive functions and is subject to disciplinary action
outlined in Section H of this policy. Additionally, the employee will be referred to a SAP.
However, should the confirmation test result in an alcohol concentration below 0.02 it is a
negative test and no further action is required.

The cost of any treatment or rehabilitation services will be paid directly by the employee or
their insurance provider. Ernployees will be allowed to take accumulated sick Ieave and
vacation leave fo participate in the prescribed rehabilitation program.

G. DISCIPLINARY ACTION AS A RESULT OF A POSITIVE TEST

The consequences for an employee who has a verified positive drug or a confirmed alcohol
test result with an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater, or who refuses to submit to a
test under this part, including the mandatory requirements will be removed immediately
from his or her safety-sensitive function and be evaluated by a substance abuse
professional, as required by 49 CFR Part 40. Before returning to their safety-sensitive
position the employee must complete the program as set by the SAP, Have a negative
return to duty test, and complete follow up testing as prescribed by the SAP following the
procedures outlined in 49 CFR Part 40.

All follow up testing will be paid by the employee.

Any employee who has a second positive test under any testing circumstances
within five years will be discharged.




H. PASS A SUBSTANCE ABUSE TEST (TEST NEGATIVE)
If the initial testing or confirmation testing, under 49CFR Part 40 procedures, does not show
evidence of the presence of a prohibited drug in the employee's or applicant’s system, it
will be classified as passing a substance abuse test or having tests rated as negative.

. NEGATIVE-DILUTE URINE SPECIMEN
Any employee having a negative-dilute urine specimen result will be treated as a negative
test and will not be required to re-test, however any Pre-employment applicant having a
negative-dilute will be required to re-test. A negative test result is required for any pre-
employment test. Negative-dilute results with creatinine concentration greater than or
equal to mg/dL but less than or equal to 5 mg/dL will require an immediate recollection
under direct observation (see §40.155(c)).

Il QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT AND PROHIBITED
CONDUCT

An employee must not consume alcohol while performing a safety-sensitive function or up
to four (4) hours prior to performing a safety-sensitive function, and up to eight (8) hours
following an accident or until the employee undergoes a post-accident test, whichever
occurs first. Alf employees who perform safety-sensitive functions for Capital Area Transit
either in a part time or full time capacity will be subject to the provisions of this policy for
the entirety of their shift.

Capital Area Transit prohibits the use, sale, possession, or distribution of prohibited drugs
by its employees at any time. Further, no employee will work while under the influence of
prohibited drugs and/or alcohol, or any drug or derivative from any of the prohibited drugs
mentioned previously in Section Ill, B).

The consumption of alcohol 4 hours prior to and during the specific hours Capital Area
Transit employees are on duty is prohibited.

Should an on-call employee be called to report to duty and has consumed alcohal within
the immediate 4 hour period preceding the call, he/she must inform the caller about that
consumption. The on-call employee will not be permitted to perform safety sensitive
functions. If the on-call employee claims ability to perform the duties of his or her safety
sensitive function an alcohol test must be administered, with a negative result, first.
However, regardless of the test resuits the employee will be subject to disciplinary actions
outlined in Section Il of this policy.

IV TESTS REQUIRED

Testing For Presence of Alcohol

All procedures used to test for the presence of alcohal are in accordance with 49CFR Part
40, which requires alcohol concentration testing for safety-sensitive employees. At this
time the alcohol concentration specimen is collected through the use of an NHTSA
approved Alcohol Screening Device (ASD) listed on ODAPC's Web page for “Approved
Screening Devices to Measure Alcohol in Bodily Fluids" and/or an NHTSA approved Evidential
Breath Testing device (EBT) listed on ODAPC's Weh page for “Approved Evidential Breath



Measurement Devices”. An ASD may only be used for screening test and cannot be used
for confirmatory tests. An EBT can be used for both screening and confirmatory alcohol
testing. A Screening Test Technician (STT) or certified Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT)
who have met their respective requirements of Part 40, Subpart J, will conduct all tests.
An STT can only conduct screening testing; and a BAT can conduct both screening and
confirmatory alcohol testing.

Capital Area Transit will test covered employees for alcohol just before, during, or, just after
performing a safety sensitive function.

Use of Alcohol

Alcohol use is not permitted four (4) hours prior to performing a safety-sensitive function,
while performing a safety-sensitive function and, for a period up to eight (8) hours following
an accident.

Life Consequences of Alcohol Misuse

The chronic consumption of alcohol (average of three servings per day of beer, whiskey,
or wine) over time may result in the following life consequences;

Health: decreased sexual functioning, dependency on alcohol, fatal liver disease,
increased cancers of the mouth, tongue, pharynx, esophagus, rectum, breast, and
malignant melanoma, kidney disease, pancreatitis, spontaneous abortion and neonatal
mortality, ulcers, and birth defects.

Work: the effects of alcohal misuse on an individual's work include impairment in
coordination and judgment, and increased likelihood of having an accident than that of a
sober person.

Personal Life: the effects of alcohol misuse on an individual’s personal life include
increased exposure to committing hamicides, vehicle accidents, family problems
including separation and divorce, increased likelihood of committing suicide, and greater
exposure to other forms of accidents.

Signs and Symptoms: dulled mental processes, lack of coordination, odor of
alcohol on breath, possible constricted pupils, sleepy or stuperous condition, slowed
reaction rate, and slurred speech.

When an alcohol problem is suspected, the available methads of intervention include the
availability of a crisis response/employee assistance service offered by Substance Abuse
Professionals that address family problems as well as substance abuse.

A. PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING
Capital Area Transit will only conduct pre-employment drug testing.

In accordance with 49CFR Part 40 each safety sensitive function applicant must consent
in writing for Capital Area Transit to obtain the applicants drug and alcohol testing records
from each previous employer of the applicant for a two year period preceding the date of
application for employment with Capital Area Transit. If an applicant or transfer employee
fails to consent, that person will not be hired into a safety sensitive function position.
Should a previous employer indicate the applicant or transfer failed or refused a drug
andfor alcohol test hefshe must provide Capital Area Transit with proof of having
successfully completed a referral, evaluation and treatment plan designed by a SAP.



All applicants for a safety sensitive position will be notified at the time they complete a job
application that they will be required to submit to a substance abuse test if they are
considered otherwise qualified for employment and that they must agree to abide to the
terms and conditions of this policy if they are ultimately hired. Failure of a pre-employment
drug test will disqualify an applicant for employment.

All current employees transferring or being transferred from a non-safety sensitive position
to a safety sensitive position must successfully pass a pre-employment substance abuse
test prior to assuming a safety sensitive position.

No applicant or transferring employee will be permitted to perform the duties of a safety
sensitive position with Capital Area Transit until the DER or designee has received
verification of a negative pre-employment test.

All safety sensitive employees who have been off for a period of 90 consecutive calendar
days and removed from the testing pool must successfully pass a pre-employment drug
test prior to returning to work. An applicant, or transferred employee, who has not
commenced performing a safety sensitive function within 90 consecutive calendar days of
Capital Area Transit's receipt of a negative test result for that individual, must successfully
pass another pre-employment test before performing such safety sensitive functions.

B. POST-ACCIDENT TESTING
Accident definition located on page 4 of this policy.

Post-Accident testing for drugs and alcohol is mandatory following a fatality, an individual
suffers Bodily injury requiring immediate medical attention away from the scene of the
accident, or if the mass-transit vehicle is a rubber-tire vehicle and any of the involved
vehicles incurs disabling damage and is towed away. Capital Area Transit shall also drug
and alcohol test any other safety sensitive employee whose performance could have
contributed to the accident, as determined by Capital Area Transit using the best
information available at the time of the decision.

In the event of a non-fatal accident Capital Area Transit shall drug and alcohol test the
vehicle operator at the time of the accident, and any other employee whose performance
could have contributed to the accident, unless Capital Area Transit determines, using the
best information available at the time of the decision, that the employee’s performance can
be completely discounted as a contributing factor to the accident.

As soon as possible, but no later than 32 hours after an accident, Capital Area Transit will
test for drugs. Additionally, if an alcohol test is not administered within two (2) hours
following an accident Capital Area Transit shall prepare and maintain on file a record
stating the reason for delay. If an alcohol test is not conducted within eight (8) hours,
Capital Area Transit shall prepare and maintain on file a report explaining why a test was
not conducted and shall cease attempts to administer an alcohol test.

The requirement to test for drugs and alcohol following an accident will not delay necessary
medical attention for injured people or prohibit a safety sensitive employee from leaving
the scene of an accident to obtain assistance or necessary emergency medical care.
However, the covered employee must remain readily available for testing and notify the
employer or the employer representative of his or her location if he or she leaves the scene
of the accident prior to submission to such test.



Any safety-sensitive employee who leaves the scene of the accident without justifiable
explanation prior to submission to drug and alcohol testing will be considered to have
refused the test and their employment terminated.

C. RANDOM TESTING

An employee testing under random testing will be given notification of test and have the
option of transporting themselves immediately to the testing site, or being transported to
the testing site by a supervisor.

In accordance with FTA requirements Capital Area Transit will test a minimum number of
safety sensitive employees for drugs and alcohol as published annually in the Federal
Register by the FTA Administrator. As provided in 49CFR Part 655.45 this rate is subject
to annual review and revision by FTA.

The selection of a safety sensitive employee to be randomly tested for the presence of
prohibited drugs or alcohol will be made by a scientifically valid method.

Random tests are unannounced and may occur anytime during operating hours and will
be spread throughout the year, testing period and, weekday. Once the employee has been
notified that he/she has been selected for testing, hefshe shall report immediately to the
collection site.

Safety sensitive employees may be randomly tested for alcohol misuse while performing
safety sensitive functions, just before performing safety sensitive functions or, just after
performing safety sensitive functions. All safety sensitive employees may be randomly
tested for drugs anytime while on duty. Testing will be performed during all hours safety
sensitive duties are performed.

The Authority reserves the right to terminate any employee who refuses to submit o a drug
or alcohol test under conditions contained in this policy

D. REASONABLE SUSPICION TESTING

In accordance with 49CFR 655.43 Capital Area Transit requires safety sensitive employees
to submit to a drug and alcohol test when a trained supervisor, or other trained company
official has, based on -contemporaneous, articulable observations concerning the-
appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of a safety sensitive employee, reasonable
suspicion that said employee has used a prohibited drug and/or engaged in alcohol misuse.

Safety sensitive employees are subjected to reasonable suspicion testing for alcohol
misuse while performing safety sensitive functions, just before performing safety sensitive
functions or, just after performing safety sensitive functions. All safety sensitive employees
are subjected to reasonable suspicion testing for drugs anytime while on duty.

It is the policy of Capital Area Transit to have a supervisor transport the employee under
reasonable suspicion to an appropriate collection site facility and wait for the completion of
the collection procedure. If the employee refuses to be transported and attempts to operate
his/her personal vehicle Capital Area Transit will make appropriated efforts to discourage
the employee from doing so, up to and including contacting local law enforcement officials.
Any employee failing to cooperate with this procedure will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination of employment.

The employee will be placed on an administrative suspension pending the results of the
reasonable suspicion tests. Employees placed on an administrative suspension must be



in a position to be easily contacted by Capital Area Transit once the results of the drug and
alcohol tests are received. Employees who cannot be easily contacted within 72 hours will
be considered to have abandoned their job and are subject to termination. If the employee
tests negative, the employee may return to work in their safety sensitive position and will
be reimbursed for any regularly assigned work missed.

E. RETURN TO DUTY TESTING

Where a safety sensitive employee refuses to submit to a test, has a verified positive drug
test result, and/or has a confirmed alcohol test result of 0.04 or greater will be removed
from their safety-sensitive position and referred to a SAP. Capital Area Transit before
returning the employee to a safety sensitive position will follow the procedures outlined in
49CFR Part 40.

F. FOLLOW-UP TESTING (AFTER RETURNING TO DUTY)

Capital Area Transit will conduct follow-up testing of each employee who returns to duty,
as specified in 49CFR Part 40.

Safety-Sensitive employees will be required to undergo frequent unannounced urine
and/or breath alcohol testing following their return to duty. The follow-up testing will be
performed for a period of one to five years with a minimum of six tests to be performed

during the first year.

The frequency of testing will be determined by the SAP. The SAP may decide to test for
drugs, alcohol or both. All follow-up testing will comply with Direct Observation Collections
Procedures for DOT Drug Tests Effective August 31, 2009. A direct observer must be the
same gender as the employee. An employee who is required to submit to an observed
test must raise his or her shirt, blouse, or dress/skirt, as applicable, above the waist; and
lower clothing and underpants to show the collector, by turning around, that the employee
does not have a prosthetic device. The observer must then watch the urine go from the
employee's body into the collection container.

All costs assaciated with any treatment or rehabilitation services will be paid directly by the

employee or their insurance provider. Employees will be alfowed to take accumulated stck
and or vacation leave to participate in a prescribed rehabilitation program.

G. FOLLOW-UP TESTING PAYMENT:

Employees participating in the second chance program will have the option of making
payment in full to Capital Area Transit within 5 business days from taking a follow-up test,
or by having a payroll deduction taken in the next payroll cycle. This deduction agreement
is part of Capital Area Transit's return to duty program.

V DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING PROCEDURES

A. COMPLIANCE WITH TESTING PROCEDURES

All drug and alcohal testing procedures in 49CFR Part 40 apply to all safety sensitive
employees of Capital Area Transit. This document is available for review at:

Capital Area Transit
901 N. Cameron St.
Harrisburg, PA 17101



717-233-5657
Human Resources Department

B. BREATH ALCOHOL TECHNICIAN
The BAT will perform the functions, and meet all the requirements outlined in 49CFR

Part 40. Capital Area Transit has a formal agreement with collection sites to perform BAT
services; please refer to appendix for a list of these locations.

C. SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROFESSIONAL (SAP)

The SAP will perform the functions and meet all the requirements outlined in 49CFR Part
40. Capital Area Transit has a formal agreement with individuals to perform SAP services:
please refer to appendix for a list of these professionals.

D. MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER (MRO)

The MRO will perform the functions and meet all the requirements outlined in 49CFR Part
40. Capital Area Transit has a formal agreement with a professional to perform MRO
services; please refer to appendix for a list of our Medical Review Officer.

E. COLLECTION SITE

Capital Area Transit has a formal contract with collection agencies to provide a clean and
compliant location staffed with trained collection site personnel, for the collection of urine
to be drug tested in accordance with 49CFR Part 40. Please refer to the appendix for a
list of these locations.

F. TESTING LABORATORY

In accordance with 49CFR Part 40 all laboratory testing of urine specimens for prohibited
drugs will be conducted at HHS approved labs. .

VI ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

A. EMPLOYEE EDUCATION AND TRAINING

All safety sensitive employees of Capital Area Transit will receive a copy of this policy and
shall be required to sign and date a receipt for it.

Capital Area Transit will provide an education program, which will include the display and
distribution to all safety sensitive employees, information material and a community service
hot-line telephane number for assistance.

Additionally, Capital Area Transit will conduct a two part-training program for employees
as described below;

1) Safety sensitive employees will receive at least 60 minutes of training on the effects
and consequences of prohibited drug use on personal health, safety, and the work
environment, and on the signs and symptoms that may indicate prohibited drug use.

2) Supervisors and other officials authorized by Capital Area Transit to make
reasonable suspicion determinations will receive at least 60 minutes of training on
the physical, behavioral, and performance indicators of probable drug use and at
least 60 minutes of training on the physical, behavioral, speech, and performance
indicators of probable alcohol misuse.



B. RETENTION OF RECORDS

Records of drug and alcohol tests shall be kept in a confidential file which is separate and
distinct from the employee’s personnel file.

C. ACCESS TO FACILITIES AND RECORDS

Capital Area Transit in accordance with 49CFR Part 40 Subpart P. will provide limited
access and release of drug and alcohol testing records. In accordance with 49CFR Part
655.73(l) Capital Area Transit grants access to facilities and recards to the appropriate
representative for the purpose of determining compliance with FTA drug and alcohol testing
regulations.



Vil COMPLIANCE

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

Capital Area Transit will annually certify compliance as directed in 49CFR Part 655.82 to;
Federal Transit Administration
1760 Market Street, Suite 500
Philadelphia, PA 19103-4124

Certification will be authorized by Capital Area Transit's governing board, or other
authorizing official, and will be signed by an individual authorized to do so.

Accepted for the Authority

[Name]
[Title]

Reviewed by the Authority

[Name]
[Title]



VIil CONTRACTOR'’S / VENDORS COMPLIANCE

Capital Area Transit will maintain that all contractors/vendors that are used performing
safety-sensitive functions for Capital Area Transit will be in compliance with FTA drug
testing. The contractor/vendor will be held to the same standards for random selection
process, testing services, training and record keeping as Capital Area Transit.

All contractors/vendors in contract with Capital Area Transit must have a Substance Abuse
Policy. Capital Area Transit will provide copies of regulations, and all FTA Drug and Alcohol
Regulation updates to their contractors. Contractors/vendors for Capital Area Transit will
provide assistance in establishing a valid random selection process, and assistance in
record keeping procedures. All contractors/vendors must submit to Capital Area Transit
sufficient documentation on their training, record keeping and testing.

Capital Area Transit will monitor and enforce contractar compliance by the following to
verify that they are complying with the drug testing. We will keep on file all our
contractors/vendors records pertaining to:

¢ Employee and supervisor training documentation.

e The name and location of their collection site, laboratory, MRO, BAT, and SAP.
e A description of their random selection process.

e Quarterly management reports summarizing testing

e The annual MIS report.

If any or all contractors/vendors are unwilling to establish or maintain a program meeting
our requirements, their contract with Capital Area Transit will be terminated.



VIl CONDITIONS FOR CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT, INFORMATION
AND CONSENT FORM

[ acknowledge that the company has determined that | have violated the company Drug
and Alcohol testing Policy. | understand that | must agree to fully comply with the conditions
described below, in order to retain my employment with the company. Further, | understand
that if, at any time, | fail to meet any of the conditions set forth, my supervisor and/or other
management staff will be notified and further disciplinary action up to and including
termination may be imposed.

A. | hereby request and give my consent to be evaluated by the Substance Abuse
Professional (SAP). Further, this evaluation will be scheduled promptly and the results
will be forwarded to the program manager. | understand that the SAP notify the
program manager as to the date and time of my evaluation, whether | keep the
appointment or not, and the type of treatment recommendations made by the SAP. |
also agree to accept the recommendations made and will cooperate fully with the
SAP.

B. | hereby accept the preferred recommendation made by the SAP, and if continued
treatment is deemed appropriate, | will cooperate fully with the treatment program. |
understand that if | do not successfully complete treatment or abide by the rules of
the program, further discipline including termination can be imposed. | also give my
cansent to allow the treatment program to communicate on the ongoing basis with the
SAP. Further, | give my consent to the SAP to communicate on an ongoing basis with
the program manager concerning my involvement in treatment, more specifically my
attendance, progress, prognosis, date and type of discharge, and my other
information deemed relevant.

C. lunderstand that additional service, treatment, or participation in self-help groups may
be recommended by the evaluator or treatment program, and as a condition of
continued employment, | hereby consent to fully participate in those services. Further,
| agree to provide verification of my participation, and allow for ongoing
communication between the SAP and the service provider.

D. | hereby consent to participate in follow-up as a condition of my continued
employment. Follow-up contacts will be made with the SAP, treatment programs,
aftercare service providers, and the program manager. Follow-up will consist of phone
calls or personal contacts for the purpose of assessing progress, determining if
additional services are needed, and to monitor compliance with the conditions for
continued employment. Follow-up will begin at the time of referral and will continue
for one year after the date of discharge from treatment.

E. I hereby consent, for information between the SAP and program manager to be given,
| understand that the information will be limited to only on a need to know basis. The
information is considered confidential and will not be shared beyond those identified
above. Further, if additional consent/release forms are required by a service provider
or other entities, | will provide the necessary consents.

Having read the above conditions, | understand that my continued employment is
based on my participation in the evaluation and treatment process, successful



completion of treatment and my full cooperation with the responsible parties, as cited
above. Further, | understand that | must need the existing requirements of my job and
that ancther violation, or, if other problems develop, further disciplinary action,
including termination, can be imposed.

Employee Signature Date

Program Manager Signature Date



IX. APPENDIX

SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROFESSIONAL (SAP)

Marsha Quinlan Dr. Teni Osundeko
2331 Market Street 4601 Locust Lane
Suite 13 Suite 102 (lower level)
Camp Hill, PA 17011 Harrisburg, PA 17109
717-614-0299 717-919-4564

MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER (MRQ)
Dr. Randy Barnett D.O.

FSSolutions

100 Highpoint Dr., Ste. 102

Chalfont, PA 18914

215-396-5500

FAX: 215-396-5610

THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR
FSSolutions

100 Highpoint Drive, Suite 102
Chalfont, PA 18914
1-800-732-3784



